
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

7:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 17, 2019 Planning Commission Minutes

MINUTES_JUNE2019_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: IUP Request For Home Business
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Nick Tennessen (Highview Woodworking) to 
establish a home-based cabinetry business. Parcel 41.171.0020. 32348 59th Avenue Way Cannon Falls, 
MN 55009. Lot 2 Block 1 of Oxford Oaks Replat in Stanton Township. R1 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_TENNESSEN.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: SES Conditional Use Permit Amendment Request
Request to amend CUP z17-0043 submitted by Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC (applicant) and Hader 
Farms Partnership (owners) to modify approved site plan and vegetative screening requirements for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.0 
acres. Parcel 38.028.1800. 14373 ST HWY 60 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SE ¼ and E ½ 

of SW ¼ Sec 28 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_SESAMENDMENT.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Gesme Addition” Preliminary And Final Plat Review
Request, submitted by David Rapp (surveyor/agent) on behalf of Keith Gesme (owner), for Preliminary 
and Final Plat review of the proposed Gesme Addition Plat comprising approximately 62.48 acres. 
Parcels 28.006.0101, 28.006.0100, and 28.005.0900. 28170 HWY 20 Cannon Falls, MN 55009.  Part of 
the East ½ of the NE ¼ and Part of the N ½ of the SE ¼ of section 6 and part of the W ½ of section 5 in 

TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. A3 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_GESME.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Hayes Addition” Preliminary And Final Plat Review
Request, submitted by Josie Hayes (owner), for Preliminary and Final review of the proposed Hayes 
Addition Plat comprising approximately 157.91 acres. Parcel 28.007.0100. 300 Carlson Road Cannon 
Falls, MN 55009. Part of the NE ¼ of Section 7 in TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. A3 

Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_HAYES.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions) and Article 11; section 26 (Kennel Performance 
Standards) to modify language defining the age of adult pets from 4 months to 7 months for kennel 
operations.
Proposed amendments to Article 24 (R-1, Suburban Residential District) to modify language relating 
dimensional requirements, permitted uses, platting requirements, and access standards. 

PACPACKET_R1.PDF
PAC_PACKET_ZONING_TEXT_AMENDMENT_KENNEL_REGULATIONS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:



Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

7:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 17, 2019 Planning Commission Minutes

MINUTES_JUNE2019_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: IUP Request For Home Business
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Nick Tennessen (Highview Woodworking) to 
establish a home-based cabinetry business. Parcel 41.171.0020. 32348 59th Avenue Way Cannon Falls, 
MN 55009. Lot 2 Block 1 of Oxford Oaks Replat in Stanton Township. R1 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_TENNESSEN.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: SES Conditional Use Permit Amendment Request
Request to amend CUP z17-0043 submitted by Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC (applicant) and Hader 
Farms Partnership (owners) to modify approved site plan and vegetative screening requirements for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.0 
acres. Parcel 38.028.1800. 14373 ST HWY 60 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the SE ¼ and E ½ 

of SW ¼ Sec 28 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 Zoned District. 

PACPACKET_SESAMENDMENT.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Gesme Addition” Preliminary And Final Plat Review
Request, submitted by David Rapp (surveyor/agent) on behalf of Keith Gesme (owner), for Preliminary 
and Final Plat review of the proposed Gesme Addition Plat comprising approximately 62.48 acres. 
Parcels 28.006.0101, 28.006.0100, and 28.005.0900. 28170 HWY 20 Cannon Falls, MN 55009.  Part of 
the East ½ of the NE ¼ and Part of the N ½ of the SE ¼ of section 6 and part of the W ½ of section 5 in 

TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. A3 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_GESME.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: “Hayes Addition” Preliminary And Final Plat Review
Request, submitted by Josie Hayes (owner), for Preliminary and Final review of the proposed Hayes 
Addition Plat comprising approximately 157.91 acres. Parcel 28.007.0100. 300 Carlson Road Cannon 
Falls, MN 55009. Part of the NE ¼ of Section 7 in TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. A3 

Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_HAYES.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions) and Article 11; section 26 (Kennel Performance 
Standards) to modify language defining the age of adult pets from 4 months to 7 months for kennel 
operations.
Proposed amendments to Article 24 (R-1, Suburban Residential District) to modify language relating 
dimensional requirements, permitted uses, platting requirements, and access standards. 

PACPACKET_R1.PDF
PAC_PACKET_ZONING_TEXT_AMENDMENT_KENNEL_REGULATIONS.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/d2247aef-3a38-4def-ae65-09c5712d5a36






















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Report date: August 9, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: IUP Request for Home Business 
Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Nick Tennessen (Highview Woodworking) to 
establish a home-based cabinetry business.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Nick Tennessen  
Address of zoning request: 32348 59th Avenue Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
Parcel(s): 41.171.0020 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Lot 2 Block 1 of Oxford Oaks Replat in Stanton Township. 
Township Information: Stanton Township endorsed acknowledgement of the Applicant’s request. 
The Stanton Township Planning Commission is holding a public hearing on August 13, 2019 for a 
300 square foot structure size variance for the proposed building.  
Zoning District: R1 (Suburban Residence District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
The applicant (Nick Tennessen) has operated Highview Woodworking at his residence for two years. 
The business designs and builds custom cabinetry for customers. The applicant is requesting an IUP 
for a Tier-2 Home Business to establish his commercial cabinetry business in an accessory structure 
that is proposed to be constructed on the property.  

Tier-2 Home Businesses are required to receive IUP’s in R1 Zoned Districts where business activities 
are conducted in an accessory structure.  

Project Summary: 
Property / Building Information: 
• The subject property is the applicant’s primary residence and consists of a single parcel 

comprising approximately 1.09 acres.  Per GCZO Article 11, Section 12 the minimum lot size for a 
Tier-2 Home Businesses is 20,000 square feet. 

 The property is bordered by R1 zoning districts to the north, south and west; A2 to the east in 
Cannon Falls Township.  Adjacent land uses include medium-density single-family residential to 
the north, south and west (Oxford Oaks Subdivision) and low density residential to the east 
(Michael Pederson property).  

 The applicant intends to construct an 1,800 square foot “stick-built” detached accessory building 
for the business. The structure is proposed to be rectangular in shape with two overhead garage 
doors (one on the west wall and one on the north wall) with a possible loft to be constructed 
inside the structure. 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

The proposed structure would accommodate all equipment required for the business.  

A building permit will need to be approved by the Goodhue County Building Permits Department 
prior to construction of the facility. 

Per GCZO Article 11, Section 12 a Tier-2 Home Business may occupy no more than 2,100 square 
feet of gross floor area on parcels up to 2 acres. 

 No plumbing will be installed in the new structure at this time. The single family dwelling located 
on the property will be utilized for restroom facilities.   

 Solid waste disposal services are provided by a local professional business. 

 The business currently does not have any exterior signage. A wall sign may be located above the 
front door of the new accessory structure which must comply with all Township and County sign 
ordinance restrictions.  

 Exterior lighting is proposed for the accessory structure. The lights will be directed toward the 
applicant’s existing dwelling and the accessory structure.  

 No exterior storage of business related materials is proposed. 

 Noise, dust, odors, or fumes generated as a result of the cabinet making process will be confined 
within the proposed structure.  

Business Information: 

 The main activity on-site is cabinet fabrication, which also includes the loading and off-loading of 
materials and finished products onto trucks and trailers. 

 Deliveries will be loaded and off-loaded on site near the applicant’s proposed building.  An 
average of 1-2 deliveries are anticipated per week. Deliveries are conducted with a small truck.  
Weekly shipment quantities may fluctuate with demand. 

 Primary hours of operation are proposed to be year-round, Monday through Friday from 7:00 
AM to 5:00 PM.    

 The applicant does not employ any additional employees.   

 Typical equipment utilized for the business includes woodworking equipment (table saws, chop 
saw, power tools, hand tools, etc.).   

 No traffic beyond that which is reasonable for the local transportation network is anticipated. 

 The applicant occasionally has customers come to the shop to view samples of products. There is 
parking space available in the existing driveway for customer vehicles and delivery vehicles.  

 Parcel access is located off of 59th Avenue Way on the west side of the property.  59th Avenue Way 
is an asphalt-surfaced roadway. Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the 
facility. 

 The applicant has a gravel and concrete paved driveway. Additional gravel would be added to 
access the proposed accessory structure. Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-
street parking provisions shall be one parking space for every 500 square feet of floor area. A 
minimum of 4 off-street parking spaces is required for this facility. 

Ample room exists on the property to fulfill parking requirements.  

 Goodhue County has not received any complaints regarding the applicant’s business operations 
since it began operating for two years. 

 The Stanton Township Planning Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on August 13, 2019 
regarding a proposed 300 square foot structure size variance for the proposed building. The 
maximum size for an accessory building in Stanton Township is 1,500 square feet. The Stanton 
Township Board will make a final decision regarding the proposal on August 20, 2019.   
 
 
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Home Business does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties 
in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and 
impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use has been established and operating for 
two years without any record of conflicts with existing residential uses in the area.  

2. The establishment of the proposed Home Business is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and the majority of the business operations will be confined within the proposed 
structure. The use as proposed appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The property has existing means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The Home Business will be conducted primarily within the accessory structure to prevent and 
control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a 
nuisance. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Nick Tennessen 
for an IUP to reestablish a Tier-2 Home Business. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this IUP;  

2. Primary hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM; 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to constructing the building; 

6. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

7. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 11, 
Section 12, Home Businesses and Article 24 R-1, Suburban Residence District. 



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A2

R1

5
9
T
H

6
0
T
H
 A
V
E

323RD

411710010
ALAN D KING

0

411700030
TODD C EATON

1.61

411700140
RONALD A DAVIS

0

411710030
JAMES A BASZURO

0

411710020
NICHOLAS R TENNESSEN

0

280301801
KEITH C MELBO

2.82

5
9
T
H

6
0
T
H
 A
V
E

411710020
NICHOLAS R TENNESSEN

0

411710010
ALAN D KING

0

411710030
JAMES A BASZURO

0

0 25 50 7512.5
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

Nick Tennessen
R1 Zoned District

Parcel 41.171.0020
Lot 2 Block 1 of Oxford Oaks Replat

in Stanton Township

Request for an IUP to establish a home-
based cabinetry business.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW

















 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 5 

 

Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax:  651.267.4875 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.267.4875 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 
 County Surveyor / Recorder 

 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 

From:  Land Use Management 

Meeting Date:   August 19, 2019 

Report Date:  August 9, 2019 

PUBLIC HEARING: SES Conditional Use Permit Amendment Request 
Request to amend CUP z17-0043 submitted by Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC (applicant) and 
Hader Farms Partnership (owners) to modify approved site plan and vegetative screening 
requirements for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 5.0 acres 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s):  Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC  
Address of zoning request:  14373 ST HWY 60 BLVD, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel 38.028.1800 
Zoning District:  A1 zoned district 
Short Legal Description:  Part of the SE ¼ and E ½ of SW ¼ Sec 28 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola 
Township Information: The Applicant presented the Site Layout/Landscape Plan to the Minneola 
Township Board of Supervisors at their meeting in March 2019.  The Township was satisfied and 
approved the plans presented at that meeting.  The current proposal includes the same Landscape Plan 
but places the Solar Panels further from the nearest residential neighbor (Travis Devlaeminck). 
 
Attachments: 

• CUP Application Form requesting an amendment to the Site Layout for the FastSun 11 – 
Utility-Scale Solar Project. 

• Letter from Paula Kalinosky, PE (EOR), dated July 31, 2019 
• Attachment A:  FastSun 11 Site Layout approved by CUP by County Board on October 3, 2017. 
• Attachment B:  FastSun 11 Grading and Drainage Plan for revised layout 
• Site Map(s) 
• Attachment C:  FastSun 11 Site Layout, Grading and Draining Plan submitted with Building 

Permit Application (approved on April 15, 2019) 
• Attachment D:  FastSun 11 Landscape Plan 
• Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428 

Background: 

Park Avenue Solar Solutions, LLC, has proposed an amendment to the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
for the FastSun 11 Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) approved by the County Board on October 
3, 2017.  The scope of the proposed CUP Amendment is limited to the site layout including the grading 
and drainage plan.    

 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 5 

 

The Site Layout (Attachment C) for the project that was approved by the County Board in October of 
2017, was a revision from the plan included with the initial CUP Application submitted for 
consideration to the Planning Commission in June of 2017.  The revision was submitted to the County 
after consideration of the CUP Application was tabled at the July 2017 Planning Commission Meeting.   

The specific action taken by the Planning Commission on July 17, 2017, was to “Table the 
request for a CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System, the Photovoltaic Ground 1 MW Solar 
Energy System, for further discussion of impacts to farmland, visual buffering of adjacent 
properties, and visual impacts to Highway 60.” 

Following the tabling, the Applicant then submitted a revised site plan for consideration at the 
September 18, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.  At this meeting, Mark Zweig (Applicant 
representative), commented that “per the recommendation by Minneola Township they had 
met with the adjacent landowner and confirmed moving the project as far west as possible and 
establishing vegetative buffers and establishing native ground cover.”  The approved plan 
would result in solar panels being sited approximately 268 feet west of the west boundary of the 
Devlaeminck Property located to the east of the project site.  

Normally a CUP must be implemented within one year from the date of approval by the County 
Board. The original applicant for the project, Sunrise Solar, submitted a written request for a 
one-year extension to implement the CUP which was approved by the Zoning Administrator. 
The project was subsequently sold and a building permit was submitted to the County by REC 
Commercial Solar Corporation on January 23, 2019 and was issued on April 15, 2019.  The 
project was then acquired by Altus Power America who has formed a limited liability 
corporation (Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC) which would be the entity intending to own and 
operate the project. 

It is important to note that the Applicant (Weber Planning on behalf of Sunrise Solar) for the 
CUP proposed the revised site plan to move the project as far west on the property as possible to 
mitigate impacts on the abutting property, namely the Devlaeminck property. Vegetative 
screening was proposed in addition to the increased setback distance to further mitigate visual 
impact concerns. 

Upon review of the building permit application for the project, County staff inadvertently 
compared the submitted site layout with the plan submitted with the initial (June 2017) CUP 
application instead of the final site plan approved by the County Board (October 2017).  The site 
layout would result in the solar panels being located within approximately 90 feet of the 
Devlaeminck’s west property line.  This would result in the nearest edge of the solar panels being 
located approximately 178 feet closer to the Devlaeminck property than the site plan approved 
by the County Board through the CUP process. 

The discrepancy was found following concerns by the abutting property owner as the fence was 
being constructed to surround the project area. The Building Permit Applicant was contacted 
and a Stop Work Order was issued by the County Building Official on May 15, 2019. 

Since the issuance of the Stop Work Order, Land Use Management Staff have been working with 
the representative of Altus Power America, Tony Savino (Managing Partner/Head of 
Construction) and a consultant for the project with Emmons and Oliver Resources, Inc. (EOR – 
Paula Kalinosky, PE) to reconcile the discrepancy. Land Use Management Staff informed Mr. 
Savino and Ms. Kalinosky that in order for the project to proceed with a revised site layout that 
Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC would need to request an amendment to the original CUP 
issued by the County Board. 



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 5 

 

In a letter from Paula Kalinosky of EOR (dated July 31, 2019), the reasons for the requested 
amendment to the CUP for the FastSun 11 Project are set forth.  It is noted in the letter that site 
design changes were necessitated by NPDES Construction Stormwater Permit requirements and 
general site constraints. Ms. Kalinosky further notes that the revised layout included with the 
proposed amendment also addresses the discrepancy between the setback from the 
Devlaeminck Property identified in the CUP (October 3, 2017) and the plan included with the 
Building Permit approved on April 15, 2019. 

Stormwater Management:  The plans submitted by Weber Planning on behalf of Sunrise Solar 
with the original CUP Application in June of 2017 has a detailed grading and drainage plan.  
Some changes to the site layout for the solar array were inevitable in order to meet Stormwater 
Permit requirements.  The Applicant has noted that the primary reason for design changes 
following the CUP approval in 2017 has been to comply with Minnesota stormwater regulations. 

Vegetative Screening:  The Applicant has noted that “the civil site plans submitted to Goodhue 
County for the Building Permit and Minneola Township for the Township Zoning Application in 
March 2019 included revisions set forth in (Attachment B).  The Township expressed concerns 
regarding the proximity of the array to the Devlaeminck’s residence in the revised plan.  To 
address these concerns, a second line of Black Hills Spruce was added to the vegetative 
screening plan along the eastern project boundary.”  The Applicant has also noted that “the final 
vegetation screening plan, which also includes a line of Cardinal Dogwoods along the eastern 
boundary (3 lines of vegetation in total), is quite robust and exceeds typical vegetative screening 
required at zoning boundaries.  Minneola Township released the Township Zoning Application 
on April 13, 2019, satisfied with the proposed screening and site layout.   A copy of the FastSun 
11 Landscape Plan is included with this report as Attachment D. 

The proposed screening reflects a significant effort to create some visual separation and 
beautification to mitigate potential negative visual impacts to adjacent landowners, especially 
for the Devlaeminck property. 

Summary: 

The Applicant has noted that “because the site layout must include stormwater management 
facilities in accordance with the Stormwater Permit and CUP itself, it was not possible to revert 
to the layout proposed ruing the CUP application process.  EOR then worked with the electrical 
engineer to revise the footprint of the solar array, while accommodating the civil site design 
shown on plans submitted for the Building Permit application.  The electrical engineer was able 
to provide a layout for the solar array that required some changes to the access road alignment, 
but increased the setback distance from the Devlaeminck property to approximately 237 feet 
without compromising site access design or required stormwater management.” 

The Site Layout included with the approved CUP (October 3, 2017) called for the nearest Solar 
Panels to be located approximately 268 feet from the Devlaeminck property boundary and 337 
feet from the Devlaeminck Dwelling (see Attachment A).  

The Site Layout included with the Building Permit (approved April 15, 2019) would have 
resulted in the nearest panels being located approximately 90 feet from the Devlaeminck 
property boundary or 159 feet from the Devlaeminck Dwelling (see Attachment C) but with an 
added row of vegetative buffer to help offset the setback reduction. 

 

 



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 5 

 

The revised Site Layout that has been proposed as part of this CUP Amendment 
Application would result in a setback for the solar panels of approximately 160 feet 
from the Devlaeminck Property boundary and 237 feet from the Devlaeminck 
Dwelling (see Attachment B).   

Numerous factors contributed to the confusion and lack of clarity resulting in the discrepancy 
between the site layout approved by CUP and the layout submitted as part of the Building 
Permit Application.  The reasons for the changes with the exception of the vegetative buffering 
were not clearly explained to County staff.  The delay in moving forward with the project, the 
sale of the project to a different company, and the fact that the revised plan resembled the 
original site layout all contributed to all parties overlooking the discrepancy between the site 
layout approved by the CUP and the layout submitted with the Building Permit Application. 

The revised site layout included with the CUP Amendment Application as Attachment C 
represents a good faith effort by the applicant Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC, to devise a 
design solution consistent with the intent of the site layout approved by the County Board on 
October 3, 2017.  

(The Findings of Fact from the approved CUP are recopied below and should remain 
applicable for the CUP if amended as proposed by Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC. 

Findings of Fact:  

1. The Utility-Scale Solar Energy System being proposed is not anticipated to be injurious to 
the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity nor is it expected to 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity. A 
vegetative buffer plan has been included with the project submittals. 

2. The Utility-Scale Solar Energy System is expected to be compatible with immediately 
surrounding land uses and is visually buffered by the topography and land cover from 
nearby residential properties. 

3. The proposed Utility-Scale Solar Energy System will not impede normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding property.  

4. Access to the site of the community solar garden will be from Highway 60.  The internal 
service drive will be grass-covered to facilitate the site being returned to farming after de-
commissioning.  The applicant is providing access driveways that will provide sufficient 
parking for maintenance vehicles or visitors to the site.  The majority of vehicular access 
generated by the Utility-Scale Solar Energy System will be during construction and 
decommissioning. 

5. The proposed Utility-Scale Solar Energy System will not create offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise or vibration. During project construction, noise will be emitted by the construction 
vehicles and equipment, including vibratory pile drivers for installation of piers. Noise will 
be mitigated during construction by maintaining engine mufflers following manufactures 
specifications.   Construction will be limited to daylight hours.  During operation, no adverse 
noise impacts are anticipated. 

6. The proposed Utility-Scale SES conforms to performance standards set forth in Article 19, 
(Solar Energy Systems). 

 

 

 

 



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 5 of 5 

 

Staff Recommendation for Conditional Use Permit for Park Avenue Solar 
Solutions LLC – Utility-Scale Solar Energy System: 
Based upon the Applicant’s request and staff review, it is advised that the Planning Advisory 
Commission act to revise the conditions that were associated with the Conditional Use Permit 
for the FastSun 11 Utility-Scale Solar Energy System Project approved by the County Board on 
October 3, 2017.  Text being removed is noted with the strikethrough symbol (sssss) and text 
being added is shown in bold font in italics (bbbbb). 
 
LUM staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
• amend existing conditions #1 and #5 as regarding site layout and vegetative screening as 

noted below; and 
Recommends that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request to amend CUP 
z17-0043 submitted by Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC (applicant) and Hader Farms 
Partnership (owners) to modify approved site plan and vegetative screening requirements for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.0 acres 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Applicant shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
establish and maintain a vegetative buffer to include coniferous plantings near the eastern 
edge of the leased area near the Devlaeminck house and the southern edge near Hwy 60, as 
submitted as referenced in CUP Application #Z19-0037, Letter from EOR dated 
July 31, 2019 and illustrated in Attachment D.   

2. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance; including but not limited to  Article 19 
Solar Energy System (SES) Regulations;  

4. The owners will cooperate with inspections of the facility in coordination with Land Use 
staff; 

5. The project is limited in location, size, and scope according to the submitted plan (revised 
site layout submitted with CUP Application #Z19-0037 as Attachment B) 
proposed in the application submittals; minor adjustments may be made to the site plan 
with approval from the Zoning Administrator; 

6. The project must be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance;  

7. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and the solar energy system 
company must be maintained to assure that the area is reclaimed; 

8. The Conditional Use Permit must be reviewed administratively every 5 years; 
9. LUM staff will be notified within 30 days by the landowner or solar company if there are any 

ownership or operator changes; 
10. The Applicant shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 

determine an appropriate seed mix of native vegetation to establish on disturbed areas of the 
site after the project equipment is installed.   

11. This CUP will expire 30 years from the date of approval of the project by the Goodhue 
County Board. 

  



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

27

32 34

29

33

28

A1

A2
CR

City

1
3
5
T
H

HIGHWAY 60

1
5
0
T
H

440TH

445TH

1
4
5
T
H

440TH ST

4

1
5
0
T
H

HIGHWAY 60

1
4
5
T
H

380281800
HADER FARMS PARTNERSHIP

224.7

380280400
RICHARD O LOKEN LT

114.86

380281400
MURIAL D STEBERG

97

380330300
ANDREW J HUNEKE

40

380330100
ANDREW J HUNEKE

72.97

380330403
BAUERS SPRING OAK DAIRY LLP

38

380282100
CARL W MAJERUS

38.23

380282000
MURIAL D STEBERG

40

380281600
MELISSA J DEVLAEMINCK

5

380270401
JERROLD C LEXVOLD

168.27

380270500
PAUL A KALASS RT

59.73

380271100
JEFFREY E SHIRLEY

16.84

380341100
JON P YUSTEN

5.22

380271000
LARS A OLSON

8

380330400
HERSCHEL E BAUER

2

380340900
JEFFREY E SHIRLEY

18.94

380282200
STATE OF MINNESOTA

1.77

0 425 850 1,275212.5
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

Park Avenue Solar Solutions LLC
A1 Zoned District

Parcel 38.028.1800
Part of the SE 1/4 and E 1/2 of SW 1/4

Sec 28 Twp 110 R16
in Minneola Township

CUP Amendment to modify approved site
plan and vegetative screening requirements
for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1MW

Solar Energy System.

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

27

32 34

29

33

28

A1

A2
CR

City

1
3
5
T
H

HIGHWAY 60

1
5
0
T
H

440TH

445TH

1
4
5
T
H

440TH ST

5

4

4

10

27

32 3433

28

1
5
0
T
H

HIGHWAY 60

1
4
5
T
H

440TH

445TH

440TH ST

1
4
0
T
H
 A
V
E

No
rth

For
kZ

umb
ro
Ri
ve
r

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
US Feet

MAP 02: VICINITY MAP

Public Hearing
July 29, 2019

David Lorentz
A2 Zoned District

Parcel 31.018.0901
Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼,
N1/2 of SE ¼, and N ½ of

SW ¼ of Sect 18 Twp 112 R15
in Featherstone Township

After-the-fact variance request to grade,
excavate, or fill within a bluff impact zone

PLANNING COMMISSION



 
 
 
 

Emmons & 

July 31, 20
 
Michael W
Planner a
Goodhue 
509 W. 5t

Red Wing

RE:	Requ

Dear Mr. W

On behalf
Use Perm
necessitat
Goodhue 
Order wa
complianc
amendme
property 
permit re
design ch
 
The prima
with Minn
MNR1000
the CUP r
comply w
facilities 
stormwat
capture a
necessari
array on 
determine

The civil s
Township
The Tow
residence
to the veg
which als
total), is 
these cha
County ra

Despite th
building p
submitted
the CUP. 
the neces

Olivier Resource

019 

Wozniak, AICP
nd Zoning Ad
County Gove
h Street 

g, MN 55066 

uest	for	Amen

Wozniak,  

f of our client
mit #Z17-0042

ted by NPDE
County Build

as issued at 
ce with plan
ent to the CUP
to the east ha

equirements. 
anges is desc

ary reason fo
nesota storm
001, Minneso
requires com

with the Stor
on the site. 

ter basin was
and treat wat
ly shifted ea
the revised 

ed by the sola

site plans sub
p Zoning App
nship expres

e in the revise
getative scree
so includes a 
quite robust 

anges, the To
aised no furth

hese approva
permit, statin
d to the Plann
EOR sent a r
sity of site de

 EOR is

es, Inc.    7030 6th

P 
dministrator 
rnment Cente

ndment	to	G

t, Park Avenu
2 (CUP) for th
ES Constructi
ding Permit #

the site on 
ns approved 
P consists of 
as been maxi
The propose

cribed below. 

or design chan
mwater regula
ota’s NPDES C

mpliance by th
rmwater Perm

To meet th
s located with
ter from the 
stward to m

plans reflec
ar array desig

bmitted to Go
plication in M
ssed concern
ed plan. To ad
ening plan alo

line of Cardi
and exceeds

ownship relea
her objections

als, on May 1
ng that fencing
ning Commiss
esponse lette

esign changes

s an Equal Oppo

h St. North    Oak

er 

oodhue	Cou

e Solar Soluti
he FastSun 11
ion Stormwa

#19-0013 wa
May 15th, 

by the Coun
a revised site
mized to the 

ed site plan is
 

nges followin
ations. The pr
Construction 
he permittee 
mit, the own
he performa
hin the down
access road 
ake room fo
cts preferred
gn team. 

odhue Count
March 2019 i
ns regarding 
ddress these 

ong the easter
inal Dogwood
s typical vege
ased the Tow
s and the Buil

15th, Goodhu
g and project
sion and app
er to the Plan
s and seeking

rtunity Affirmativ

kdale, MN 55128

nty	CUP,	File

ions, LLC, we
1 solar garden
ater Permit r
as issued for t
2019, citing 

nty as part o
e layout in w
extent practi

s included as

ng the CUP ap
roject is subj
Stormwater P
with all fede

ner must pro
nce standard

n-gradient (w
and solar pa

r the stormw
d stringing c

ty for the Buil
ncluded the 
the closer p
concerns, a s

rn project bo
ds along the 
etative scree

wnship Zonin
lding Permit w

ue County iss
t setbacks we
roved by the 
nning and Zo
g a path forwa

ve Action Employ

    T/ 651.770.844

e	#Z17‐0042

e are requesti
n site to allow
requirements
this project i
fence line a

f the CUP (A
which the setb

ical given site
s Attachment

proval in 201
ect to regula
Permit (Storm
eral and stat
ovide perman
ds laid out 

west) portion 
anels.  The lo
water basin. 
configuration

lding Permit a
revisions des

proximity of 
second line o
undary. The 
eastern bou
ning require

ng Application
was issued. 

sued a stop w
ere not in com

Goodhue Cou
oning Admini
ard.  The Cou

 

yer 

48    F/ 651.770.2

2,	FastSun	11

ing an amend
w site design 
s and genera
in April 2019
and setbacks
Attachment A
back distance
e constraints
t B. The ratio

17 has been t
ation by the S
mwater Perm
te regulations
nent stormw
in the Storm
of the lease 

ocation of th
The configur
s and equip

and Minneola
scribed abov
the array to

of Black Hills 
final vegetati
ndary (3 line

ed at zoning 
n on April 1

work order w
mpliance with
unty Board in
strator on Ju

unty provided

2552    www.eorin

1	Solar	Garde

dment to Cond
changes that

al site constr
9, but a Stop 
s allegedly n
A).  The prop
 from the adj
 and various 

onale for prop

the need to co
State under P
mit). Conditio
s and permit

water manage
mwater Perm
area at the s

he solar array
ration of the 

pment setbac

a Township fo
ve (Attachme
o the Devlaem

spruce was a
ion screening
es of vegetati
boundaries.  
3th, 2019, an

with respect t
h the final Site
n conjunction

une 11th expla
d a response t

 

nc.com 

en	

dition 
t were 
raints. 
Work 

not in 
posed 
jacent 
other 

posed 

omply 
Permit 

n 2 of 
ts.  To 
ement 
mit, a 
site to 
y was 

solar 
cks as 

or the 
nt B). 
minck 
added 
g plan, 
ion in 

With 
nd the 

to the 
e Plan 
n with 
aining 
to the 



 

Emmons & 

EOR lette
Building 
County B
layout cou

Because 
Stormwat
CUP appl
solar arra
applicatio
changes t
property 
managem

To accom

 R
 R

so
 R

in
 R
 R

 
The overa
consisten
facilities 
originally
been able
The incre
potential 

Thank yo
to satisfy 
recomme

Sincerely,

Paula Kali
Emmons a

cc:  T
 B
 R
 M

Je
 

Olivier Resource

er dated June
Permit appli
oard as a pr
uld be modifi

the site layo
ter Permit an
ication proce

ay, while acco
on. The electr
to the acces
to approxim

ment. 

mmodate the p

Removal, reloc
Relocation of t
outh. 

Removal and 
ntersects revi

Revisions to th
Revisions to se

all configurat
t with the Se
on the site, 

y developed b
e to provide a
eased setback
visual impact

u for your co
the requirem

nd approval o

,  

inosky, PE 
and Olivier R

ony Savino 
ill Edwards 

Ryan Fleming 
Maria Law 
eff Paulson 

es, Inc.    7030 6th

e 28th, 2018 s
ication would
roposed amen
ed to provide

out must in
nd the CUP it
ess. EOR then
ommodating t
rical engineer
ss road align
ately 237 fee

proposed arra

cation, and re
the screening

relocation o
ised screening
he chain link f
eeding areas 

ion of the site
eptember 20
it is not pos

by Sunrise En
a side-yard se
k along with
ts to the adjac

nsideration o
ments of all 
of this propos

 

Resources, Inc

 

h St. North    Oak

stating that d
d need to be
ndment to th
e consistency

nclude storm
tself, it was n
n worked wi
the civil site d
r was able to
nment, but in
et without co

ay layout, oth

econstruction
g line along th

of gravel and
g along the so
fence alignme

e layout and f
17 layout. G

ssible to prov
nergy Ventur
etback of app

h the much m
cent resident

of this matter
applicable pe
sed amendme

c. 

  

kdale, MN 55128

design change
e reviewed b
he CUP.  Alte

y with the layo

water mana
not possible t
th the electr

design shown
 provide a lay
ncreased the

ompromising 

her elements o

n of the equipm
he south proj

d geogrid un
outh side of th
ent  

footprint of th
iven the nee
vide a setbac

res.  By work
proximately 1
more robust 
tial property. 

r.  Park Avenu
ermits and a
ent to the CU

    T/ 651.770.844

es shown on 
by the Plann
ernatively, th
out approved

agement facil
to revert to t
rical engineer
n on plans sub
yout for the 
e setback di

site access d

of the site lay

ment pad for
ect boundary

nderlayment 
he project are

he array in th
ed to accomm
ck equal to t

king with the
160 feet (set
screening ve
 

ue Solar and 
sk that the P
P. 

48    F/ 651.770.2

plans appro
ing Advisory

he County off
d as part of th

lities in acco
the layout pro
r to revise th
bmitted for th
solar array th
stance from 

design or req

yout were rev

r inverter equ
y approximat

where the 
ea 

he revised civ
modate perm
that shown o
 solar array 

tback from re
egetation wil

EOR have wo
Planning Adv

2552    www.eorin

oved as part o
y Commission
fered that th
e CUP.  

ordance with
oposed durin

he footprint o
he Building P
hat required 

the Devlaem
quired stormw

vised includin

uipment. 
tely 20 feet fu

existing turn

vil site plan re
anent stormw
on the site l
designer, we

esidence 237 
ll further mi

orked in good
visory Commi

nc.com 

of the 
n and 

he site 

h the 
ng the 
of the 

Permit 
some 

minck 
water 

ng: 

urther 

n out 

emain 
water 
layout 
e have 

feet).  
tigate 

d faith 
ission 



60' P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 LIN

E
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

PROPOSED RISER POLES

SEE DETAIL A

PV ARRAY FENCE

SITE ACCESS

DIRT ROAD 20' WIDE

SITE ACCESS OFF HWY 60

EXISTING XCEL POLE (POI)

3
6
0
'

UG MV HOME RUN 12.47kV

APPROX. 780FT

PV ARRAY

FIXED TILT RACKING

337'

SITE ACCESS 20' WIDE GATE

PCS SKID

2x500kW INVERTERS - 1000kW

1000kVA TRANSFORMER

SEE DETAIL B

4
4
2
'

421'

440'

440'

337'  RESIDENTIAL SETBACK

3
0
'
 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L

I
N

E
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

4
4
2
'

15'

1
5
'

3

0

'
 
P

R

O

P

E

R

T

Y

 
L

I
N

E

 
S

E

T

B

A

C

K

50' TYP.

UNDERGROUND MEDIUM VOLTAGE AC CIRCUIT FROM

INVERTER STATION TO CUSTOMER DISCONNECT.

CIRCUIT DISTANCES VARY BY CSG PROJECT.

780FT APPROX.

2
2
'

1
3
0
'

EXISTING OH LINE

PARCEL LINE

50' TYP.

VISIBLE, LOCKABLE

DISCONNECT SWITCH.

PLACARD 'UTILITY AC

DISCONNECT'

AND FUSED GP SWITCH

RE-CLOSER WITH MULTI

FUNCTION SEL351 RELAY.

SEE SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM

UTILITY AC DISCONNECT SWITCH

PLACARD 'UTILITY AC DISCONNECT'

XCEL EXISTING POLE (POI)

BI-DIRECTIONAL MAIN BILLING

REVENUE METER

SEE SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM

6' TYP.

2x500kW INVERTERS

XCEL ENERGY APPROVED

PRIMARY METERING CABINET

1000kVA STEP-UP TRANSFORMER

WITH 600A INTEGRATED DISCONNECT PLACARD

'UTILITY AC DISCONNECT'

UNDERGROUND MEDIUM

VOLTAGE AC CIRCUIT  TO

UTILITY AC DISCONNECT 12.47kV

UTILITY PV  PRODUCTION METER

POWER CONVERTING

STATION (PCS)

6' TYP.

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DWG No.:

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT No: 

DATEREV.

REVISION

DESCRIPTION

DRAWN

BY

CHKD.

BY

CHECKED BY:

DRAWING SCALE:

2

03.10.2017

ADDED DIMENSIONS

AP JC

3

06.02.2017

FIXED TYPOS/FORMATTING

ZW

4

08.23.2017
CHANGED TO FIXED TILT &

MODIFIED LAYOUT

MD

5

02.14.2018

CHANGED TO TRACKER

MODIFIED ACCESS ROAD

MD

6

07.11.2018

EXPANDED LEASE AREA

MD

PV SYSTEM CONFIGURATION:

AZIMUTH: TRUE SOUTH (180°)

TILT ANGLE: 35°

EDGE TO EDGE ROW DISTANCE: 25ft

DISTANCE BETWEEN ROWS: 14.5ft

MODULE WIDTH: 6.42ft

GROUND COVERAGE RATIO: 0.42

GROUND CLEARANCE: MIN 24"

SITE PLAN

VICINITY MAP

FASTSUN 11

1.35MWdc / 1.0MWac

SYSTEM VOLTAGE: 1000V

MODULES: TRINA TALLMAX PLUS 335W

QTY: 4,032

TOTAL STRINGS: 224 (18 MODULE STRINGS)

INVERTERS:

SOLECTRIA 500XTM - 500kW - QTY: 2

INVERTER SKID:

2x500kW INVERTERS

1000kVA TRANSFORMER

FIXED TILT GROUND MOUNT

2X18 TYPICAL RACKS: 112

DRIVEN PIER FOUNDATION

4
4

°
1

7
'
5

3
.
3

7
"
N

 
 
9

2
°
4

4
'
2

5
.
8

6
"
W

1
4
6
5
7
 
H

w
y
 
6
0
 
B

l
v
d

Z
u
m

b
r
o
t
a
,
 
M

N
 
5
5
9
9
2

TBD

03.10.2016

F
a

s
t
S

u
n

 
L

L
C

,
 
F

A
S

T
S

U
N

 
1

1

P.01

SITE

LAYOUT

AP AP

NOTES

SITE

DETAIL A DETAIL B

NOTES:

1. MAIN SERVICE METER AND XCEL DISCONNECT. POINT OF COMMON COUPLING WITH XCEL

ENERGY. PER XCEL ENERGY DRAWING PM-10 COMPANY

OWNED PRIMARY METER INSTALLATION. MOUNT ON METER POLE. PROVIDE PLACARD STATING

"GENERATION SYSTEM CONNECTED".

2. TRANSFORMERS. PROVIDE 1000KVA STEP-UP TRANSFORMER, 12.47kV:380V. PROVIDE NEUTRAL

GROUNDING REACTOR.

3. PV PRODUCTION METER. PROVIDE POTENTIAL TRANSFORMERS AND CURRENT TRANSFORMERS

AS REQUIRED TO MEET XCEL ENERGY METERING, VOLTAGE AND CURRENT STANDARDS.

4. PV PRODUCTION METER DISCONNECT. PROVIDE ACCESSIBLE, VISIBLE, AND LOCKABLE

DISCONNECT.

5. INSTALLATION TO COMPLY WITH NEC 2014 ARTICLE 690 AND ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND

NATIONAL CODES OR REGULATIONS.

6. EQUIPMENT SHALL BE LABELED PER NEC 690 AND XCEL ENERGY REGULATIONS.

7. ACCESS ROADS SHALL BE DESIGNED TO ACCOMMODATE ALL CONSTRUCTION, OPERATIONS,

AND MAINTENANCE TRAFFIC THROUGHOUT THE SITE.

601 Carlson Parkway, Suite 1050
Minnetonka, MN 55305

Tel: (704) 975-6529

1. Fence overall height - 7' ft. chain

link type with 2 inch mesh and three

strands of barb wire, accommodating

restricted access

2. Fence shall meet the required

setbacks. See drawing for details.

3. Site access for construction and

for the permanent facility will be located

off of HWY60.

4. Signage and emergency contact

numbers posted at entrance.

5. The proposed solar PV system is

1000VDC.

6. The inverter proposed here is

UL1741 listed .

7. The utility interconnection

medium voltage is not known at the

stage of interconnection application.

8. Inverter re-combiner

configuration is TBD.

9. The proposed system is

designed as per applicable codes of

NEC 2014.

FASTSUN LLC

PROJECT NAME, COORDINATES, SITE ADDRESS: 

LEGEND:

PARCEL BOUNDARY LINE

PROPOSED LEASE AREA - 20 AC

PROPERTY LINE SETBACK AS NOTED

FENCE LINE - 4.5 ACRES

UNDERGROUND MV HOME RUN

PROPOSED NEW ACCESS ROAD

EXISTING OVERHEAD LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

pkalinosky
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A - APPROVED SITE PLAN - CUP #Z17-0042FASTSUN 11 ZUMBROTA-HADER SOLAR GARDEN SITE



A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 2

A 1

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 6

A 5

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 4

A 3

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

A 10

A 9

1
0
4
0

1
0
5
0

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1
0

4
2

1
0
4
4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
8

1

0

5

2

1

0

5

4

1

0

3

7

1
0
3
0

1

0

4

0 1

0

5

0

1
0
2
4

1

0

2

6

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

8

1

0

5

2
1

0

5

4 1

0

5

6

1

0

2

0

1

0

3

0

1

0

4

0

1

0

1

6

1

0

1

8

1

0

2

2

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

6

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1
0
4
2

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

6

FENCE (TYP.)

12" FES

INV: 1019.5

12" FES

INV: 1019.8

EOF 8' WIDE CONCRETE FLUME AT ELEV:

1032.5 ACROSS ROAD WITH REINFORCED

TURF DISCHARGED SWALE

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1026.0

36" OUTLET STRUCTURE

RIM: 1031.0

15" HDPP W: 1027.5

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1031.0

RECONSTRUCT EQUIPMENT PAD

INFILTRATION BASIN 1

BOTT ELEV: 1030.0

OUTLET ELVE: 1031.0

EOF: 1032.5

± 60 LF 15" HDPP @ 2.5%

± 44 LF 12" HDPP @ 0.7%

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1037.0

20' WIDE GATE

± 60 LF 15" HDPP @ 10%

60' EASEMENT FOR ACCESS ROAD

BOTTOM OF BASIN MUST INTERSECT

SM/SP SANDS, OVER-EXCAVATE AS

NECESSARY.  IF OVER-EXCAVATION IS

GREATER THAN THREE FEET, INSTALL

ALTERNATE BIOFILTRATION BASIN WITH

DRAIN TILE CONNECTED TO OUTLET

STRUCTURE.  ADJUST INVERTS TO

ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

1020

1030

1

0

3

0

1

0

4

0

1

0

4

0

1
0
2
2

1022

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

6

1026

1028

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1

0

3

8

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
6

1
0

4
6

1
0
4
6

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

8

1
0
4
8

RELOCATE GRAVEL AS NEEDED TO

ACCOMMODATE SCREENING LINE (SHEET 07)

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
:
 
0
7
/
2
6
/
2
0
1
9

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
a
m

e
:
 
X

:
\
c
l
i
e
n
t
s
_
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
\
0
1
4
0
4
_
a
l
t
u
s
_
p
o
w

e
r
_
a
m

e
r
i
c
a
\
0
0
1
1
_
f
s
1
1
_
z
u
m

b
r
o
t
a
_
h
a
d
e
r
\
0
9
_
g
i
m

s
_
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
n
a
m

e
\
d
w

g
\
C

D
-
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
.
d
w

g

X
r
e
f
s
:
,
 
L
-
B

a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
2
,
 
x
-
b
a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
2
,
 
P

-
B

a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1

NO DATE BY REVISION

2       03/12/2019         BR       100% PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION

3       04/01/2019         BR       100% PLANS - LANDSCAPE REVISIONS

4       04/04/2019         SZ       100% PLANS - LANDSCAPE REVISIONS

5       04/18/2019         BR       100% REVISION 1 GRADING CHANGE

6       05/14/2019         PK        100% REV 2 - LEASE AND FENCE LINE REVISIONS, STRUCTURAL OVERLAY

DESIGN BY DRAWN BY

SP BR

EOR PROJECT NO.

1404-0011

SUBMISSION  DATE:

04/04/2019

 STATE PROJECT NO. ----  CITY PROJECT NO. ---

Emmons & Olivier

Resources, Inc.

w a t e r

eco logy

community

7030 6th Street North

Oakdale, MN 55128

Tele: 651.770.8448

www.eorinc.com

SHEET  04 OF 12  SHEETS

GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN

N

0

SCALE  IN  FEET

25 50 100

FS - 11 ZUMBROTA HADER SOLAR

GARDEN

 GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA

02

11

02

11

03

10

01

11

01

11

PARK AVENUE SOLAR

SOLUTION, LLC

102 GREENWICH AVENUE, THIRD

FLOOR, GREENWICH, CT 06830

01

10

03

11

04

11

03

12

02

10

02

12

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT

WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND

THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER

THE  LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

STEVE PELLINEN

DATE:   04/01/2019 LICENSE #   15345

BOTTOM OF BASIN MUST INTERSECT SM/SP SANDS.  OVEREXCAVATE

AS NEEDED IF EXCAVATION IS GREATER THAN THREE FEET, INSTALL

ALTERNATE BILFILTRATION BASIN WITH DRAINTILE CONNECTED TO

THE OUTLET STRUCTURE. ADJUST INVERTS AS NEEDED.

01

10

R1

R1
R2

R3

7       07/25/2019         BR       100% REV 3 - FENCE AND ROAD LAYOUT CHANGED

237.42

164.39

pkalinosky
Text Box
ATTACHEMENT B - PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT - CUP AMENDMENT APPLICATION 7/26/19FASTSUN 11 ZUMBROTA-HADER SOLAR GARDEN SITE



ST-9

ST-10

ST-11

ST-2

ST-3

ST-1

ST-12

ST-4

ST-5

ST-13

ST-6

ST-7

1
0
4
0

1
0
5
0

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1
0

4
2

1
0
4
4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
8

1

0

5

2

1

0

5

4

1

0

3

7

1
0
3
0

1

0

4

0 1

0

5

0

1
0
2
4

1

0

2

6

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

8

1

0

5

2
1

0

5

4 1

0

5

6

1

0

2

0

1

0

3

0

1

0

4

0

1

0

1

6

1

0

1

8

1

0

2

2

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

6

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1
0
4
2

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

6

PROPOSED ROAD (TYP.)

FENCE (TYP.)

PROPOSED UTILITY AND

ACCESS EASEMENT

12" FES

INV: 1019.5

12" FES

INV: 1019.8

EOF 8' WIDE CONCRETE FLUME AT ELEV:

1032.5 ACROSS ROAD WITH REINFORCED

TURF DISCHARGED SWALE

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1026.0

36" OUTLET STRUCTURE

RIM: 1031.0

15" HDPP W: 1027.5

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1031.0

POINT OF INTERCONNECT

INFILTRATION BASIN 1

BOTT ELEV: 1030.0

OUTLET ELVE: 1031.0

EOF: 1032.5

± 60 LF 15" HDPP @ 2.5%

± 44 LF 12" HDPP @ 0.7%

15" FES AND RIP RAP

INV: 1037.0

20' WIDE GATE

± 60 LF 15" HDPP @ 10%

60' EASEMENT FOR ACCESS ROAD

BOTTOM OF BASIN MUST INTERSECT

SM/SP SANDS, OVER-EXCAVATE AS

NECESSARY.  IF OVER-EXCAVATION IS

GREATER THAN THREE FEET, INSTALL

ALTERNATE BIOFILTRATION BASIN WITH

DRAIN TILE CONNECTED TO OUTLET

STRUCTURE.  ADJUST INVERTS TO

ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

1020

1030

1

0

3

0

1

0

4

0

1

0

4

0

1
0
2
2

1022

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

4

1

0

2

6

1026

1028

1

0

2

8

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

6

1

0

3

8

1

0

3

8

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

4

1
0
4
6

1
0
4
6

1
0

4
6

1
0
4
6

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

8

1
0
4
8

1

0

3

0

1
0
3
0

1

0

4

0

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

2

1

0

3

4

1

0

3

4

1036

1

0

3

6
1

0

3

8

1

0

4

2

1

0

4

4

1

0

4

6

1

0

4

8

P
l
o
t
 
D

a
t
e
:
 
0
4
/
1
8
/
2
0
1
9

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
n
a
m

e
:
 
X

:
\
c
l
i
e
n
t
s
_
p
r
i
v
a
t
e
\
0
1
4
0
4
_
a
l
t
u
s
_
p
o
w

e
r
_
a
m

e
r
i
c
a
\
0
0
1
1
_
f
s
1
1
_
z
u
m

b
r
o
t
a
_
h
a
d
e
r
\
0
9
_
g
i
m

s
_
p
r
o
j
e
c
t
n
a
m

e
\
d
w

g
\
C

D
-
D

r
a
w

i
n
g
s
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
.
d
w

g

X
r
e
f
s
:
,
 
P

-
B

a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
2
,
 
L
-
B

a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
2
,
 
x
-
b
a
s
e
-
1
4
0
4
-
0
0
1
1
-
1

1       11/14/2018          BR       90% NOT FOR CONSTRUCITON

NO DATE BY REVISION

2       03/12/2019         BR       100% FINAL SUBMITAL

3       04/01/2019         BR       100% PLANS - LANDSCAPE REVISIONS

4       04/04/2019         SZ       100% PLANS - LANDSCAPE REVISIONS

5       04/18/2019         BR       100% REVISION 1 GRADING CHANGE

6

DESIGN BY DRAWN BY

SP BR

EOR PROJECT NO.

1404-0011

SUBMISSION  DATE:

04/04/2019

 STATE PROJECT NO. ----  CITY PROJECT NO. ---

Emmons & Olivier

Resources, Inc.

w a t e r

eco logy

community

7030 6th Street North

Oakdale, MN 55128

Tele: 651.770.8448

www.eorinc.com

SHEET  04 OF 12  SHEETS

GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN

N

0

SCALE  IN  FEET

25 50 100

FS - 11 ZUMBROTA HADER SOLAR

GARDEN

 GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA

02

11

02

11

03

10

01

11

01

11

PARK AVENUE SOLAR

SOLUTION, LLC

102 GREENWICH AVENUE, THIRD

FLOOR, GREENWICH, CT 06830

01

10

03

11

04

11

03

12

02

10

02

12

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN, SPECIFICATION, OR REPORT

WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND

THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER

THE  LAWS OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA.

STEVE PELLINEN

DATE:   04/01/2019 LICENSE #   15345

BOTTOM OF BASIN MUST INTERSECT SM/SP SANDS.  OVEREXCAVATE

AS NEEDED IF EXCAVATION IS GREATER THAN THREE FEET, INSTALL

ALTERNATE BILFILTRATION BASIN WITH DRAINTILE CONNECTED TO

THE OUTLET STRUCTURE. ADJUST INVERTS AS NEEDED.

01

10

R1

pkalinosky
Text Box
ATTACHEMENT C - SITE LAYOUT - BUILDING PERMIT SUBMITTALFASTSUN 11 ZUMBROTA-HADER SOLAR GARDEN SITE

pkalinosky
Line

pkalinosky
Line

pkalinosky
Typewritten Text
155'

pkalinosky
Line

pkalinosky
Typewritten Text
80'

pkalinosky
Line



ATTACHMENT D (Referenced by LUM Staff)















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 1 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Report date: August 9, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Gesme Addition” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request, submitted by David Rapp (surveyor/agent) on behalf of Keith Gesme (owner), for 
Preliminary and Final Plat review of the proposed Gesme Addition Plat comprising approximately 
62.48 acres.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: David Rapp (surveyor/agent) on behalf of Keith Gesme (owner)  
Address of zoning request: 28170 HWY 20 Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
Parcel(s): 28.006.0101, 28.006.0100 and 28.005.0900 
Abbreviated Legal Description:  Part of the East ½ of the NE ¼ and Part of the N ½ of the SE ¼ of 
section 6 and part of the W ½ of section 5 in TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls Township. 
Zoning District: A3 (Urban Fringe District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application  
Site Map(s) 
Survey 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
David Rapp (surveyor/agent) has prepared a Preliminary and Final Plat of the “Gesme Addition” on 
behalf of Keith Gesme (owner) for consideration.  

According to the Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance, any land subdivision which crosses 
section lines must be platted and any subdivision which dedicates any interests to the public such as 
easements or roads must be formally platted. The proposed “Gesme Addition” dedicates 99.64 feet of 
frontage to State Highway 20. The property is being platted to re-configure property lines for family 
property holdings. No additional dwelling sites will be created due to the subdivision.  

The plat meets all requirements for access, parcel size and setbacks.  The parcel is not proposed to be 
rezoned at this time.  
 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by David 
Rapp (surveyor/agent) on behalf of Keith Gesme (owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of 
the proposed “Gesme Addition” Plat comprising approximately 62.48 acres. 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428




DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

A3

A2

City

280TH

HI
GH

WA
Y 
20

5TH CO
UN
TY
 1
7

Cannon River

280TH

HI
GH
W
AY
 2
0

280060100
GESME BROTHERS LLC

145.61

280051000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

164.99

280050900
GESME BROTHERS LLC

60

280060500
DAKOTA LIVESTOCK CO

29.34

280060100
GESME BROTHERS LLC

145.61

280062000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

80

280051100
VIOLET A NELSON RT

51.92

280060101
KEITH GESME

7.87

280060601
CANNON VALLEY PINE CREEK FARMS

41.99

280051200
HOWARD H DOEHLING

9.13

280062101
ROBERT T WIDMAN

40

280051100
VIOLET A NELSON RT

51.92

280060300
VIOLET A NELSON RT

5

280062100
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

40

280060200
DAKOTA ELECTRIC ASSOC

0.7

0 430 860 1,290215
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

David Rapp (authorized agent) on
behalf of Keith Gesme (owner)

A3 Zoned District
Parcels 28.006.0101, 28.006.0100 &

28.005.0900
Part of the East 1/2 of the NE 1/4 and Part of
the N 1/2 of the SE 1/4 of Sect 6 and part
of the W 1/2 of Sect 5 in TWP112 R17

in Cannon Falls Township
 Preliminary and Final Plat Review of
proposed "Gesme Addition" Plat

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW







 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Report date: August 09, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: “Hayes Addition” Preliminary and Final Plat Review  
Request, submitted by Josie Hayes (owner), for Preliminary and Final review of the proposed Hayes 
Addition Plat comprising approximately 157.91 acres. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Josie Hayes (owner) 
Address of zoning request: 300 Carlson Road Cannon Falls, MN 55009 
Parcel(s): 28.007.0100 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NE ¼ of Section 7 in TWP 112 Range 17 in Cannon Falls 
Township 
Zoning District: A3 (Urban Fringe District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary (excerpt of materials, full submittal available upon 
request)  
Site Map(s) 
Survey 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
The Applicant (Josie Hayes) owns a single parcel comprising 157.91 acres in section 7 of Cannon 
Falls Township. The “Hayes Addition” Plat is proposed to allow the property to be subdivided into 
four lots, which the applicant intends to sell as potential dwelling sites in the future.  

In the A3 District (Urban Fringe) dwelling density is based on a minimum parcel size of 1 dwelling 
per 35-acres. The proposed plat would create three 35.10 acre lots (lots 1, 3, & 4) and one 52.61 acre 
lot (lot 2) which would conform to the minimum dimensional requirements for the existing district. 
No rezone is requested at this time. 

The Applicant is required to follow the formal Platting process for the proposed subdivision as the 
split will create more than 3 new tax parcels from a single tax parcel and the split will be dedicating 
Right-of-Way to the public where the property abuts County 17 Boulevard in the southeast corner. 

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The 157.91-acre property consists of an existing homestead, row-crop agricultural land, and 

undeveloped woodlands/prairie. The existing dwelling is the applicant’s primary residence. They 
intend to continue occupying until they can build a new dwelling on Lot 2. 

 The property is zoned A3 and no rezone is proposed. Adjacent zoning districts are A3 to the north 
and east. The city of Cannon Falls borders the property to the south and east.  

 There are some steep slopes crossing the property from east to west that qualify as Blufflands and 
are subject to Goodhue County Bluffland Protection regulations. The property is not a Registered 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

Feedlot and the nearest Registered Feedlot is a half-mile northeast of the site. 

 The proposed Plat would create 4 lots. Each lot will exceed the 35-acre minimum parcel size for 
the A3 District and would be eligible dwelling development sites (subject to other County and 
Township zoning and sanitation requirements). 

Access/Traffic: 
 The existing dwelling is accessed off Carlson RD within the city of Cannon Falls. 

The Applicants have received approvals from Cannon Falls City Council to use Carlson RD and 
Viking AVE to access the lots 1, 2, and 3. Lot 4 would be accessed via CTY 17 BLVD in the 
southeast corner of the property.  

The tillable farmland is currently rented by a farmer and accessed from adjacent fields to the 
north of the Hayes’ property. In the future, the farmland could be accessed via the frontage to 
Carlson RD on Lot 2 through existing field access road traversing the Blufflands to the north. 

Water/Wastewater: 
 The property currently has a single-family dwelling and several accessory structures that is 

served by a private well and septic system. The Applicant intends for the new lots to be served by 
individual wells and septic systems upon development. 

 Goodhue County Sanitarian, Ben Hoyt, offered the following comments regarding the proposed 
Plat: 

“ Environmental Health has no specific issues with the plat. However, some land uses will have 
additional regulations. Part of the land from parcel 28.007.0100 is within the Drinking Water 
Supply Management Area (DWSMA) of Cannon Falls. The land use for areas within the 
DWSMA should be monitored because of the areas high sensitivity to groundwater 
contamination. New sources of potential contamination within the DWSMA such as new wells 
or septic systems should be discouraged. The solution with the least potential impact to the 
DWSMA would be to have dwellings in this area connected to municipal water and sewer.” 

Cannon Falls Township/City of Cannon Falls: 
 LUM Staff discussed the proposal with Cannon Falls Township Clerk (Sue Safe) on 8/8/19. She 

commented they have met with the Applicant on several occasions and they are not opposed to 
the request. She noted that the Town Board has discussed the Township’s 1,000-foot dwelling 
setback requirement for neighboring dwellings with the Applicant and they are aware of the 
Township’s zoning standards.  
 

 LUM Staff also discussed the proposed Plat with the city of Cannon Falls and they stated they 
have no objections. 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Josie 
Hayes (owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Hayes Addition” comprising 
157.91 acres (PID: 28.007.0100). 
 
 



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

6

7 8

5

City of
Cannon Falls

A3

City

5
T
H

H
IG
H
W
A
Y
 2
0

WA
SH

ING
TO

N

9
T
H

7
T
H 1S

T

CO
UN
TY
 1
7

C

an
no

n
Riv

er

2

3

1

4

WASHIN
GTON

V
IK
IN
G EVERGREEM

280070100
JOSIE K HAYES

157.85

280062000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

80

525100133
GEMINI INC

18.2

521900150
CANNON BLUFFS LLC

30.16

280080400
GESME BROTHERS LLC

35

525100300
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

25.12

525000041
GEMINI INC

4.28

522360050
SCOTT W PETERSON

0

524850020
JAMES H JOHNSON JR

0

525100130
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

27.5

280070300
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

14.55

524000360
RYAN OLSON

0 521900010
SCOTT EXLEY

0

280051000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

164.99

524850010
SCOTT J PEER

0

524000260
MITCH MEYERS

0

280062100
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

40

0 290 580 870145
US Feet

PLANNING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

Josie Hayes
A3 Zoned District

Parcel 28.007.0100
Part of the NE 1/4 of Section 7

in TWP112 Range 17
 in Cannon Falls Township

Preliminary and Final Plat review of
proposed "Hayes Addition" Plat

MAP 01: PROPERTY OVERVIEW



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

6

7 8

5

City of
Cannon Falls

A3

City

5
T
H

H
IG
H
W
A
Y
 2
0

WA
SH

ING
TO

N

9
T
H

7
T
H 1S

T

CO
UN
TY
 1
7

C

an
no

n
Riv

er

0

0
7

5
T
H

WASHINGTON

4
T
H

1S
T

6
T
H

DAKOTA

R
IVER

RID
GE

CR
ES

T

CAN
NON

 RIV
ER

3
R
D

V
IK
IN
G

PR
IM
RO

SE

VIL
LA
GE

H
IG
H
W
AY
 20

RIVERS
IDE

E
V
E
R
G
R
E
E
N

2
9
0
T
H
 S
T

BA
RK

LEY

CANNON

R
ID
G
E
B
R
O
O
K

T
R
IL
L
IU
MC

A
R
LS

O
N

280070100
JOSIE K HAYES

157.85

280051000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

164.99280062000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

80

525600010
CITY OF CANNON FALLS

113.27

525100133
GEMINI INC

18.2

525600060
GLENN M MULVIHILL

32.6

521900150
CANNON BLUFFS LLC

30.16

280080400
GESME BROTHERS LLC

35

280060100
GESME BROTHERS LLC

145.61

280080500
GESME BROTHERS LLC

20

525100130
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

27.5

280060701
WILLIAM J BREMER

28.33

280062100
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

40

280062101
ROBERT T WIDMAN

40

525100300
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

25.12

525100291
LEON J HANSON

12

521900240
CANNON BLUFFS I HOMEOWNR ASSOC

20.32

525100292
JACOB WINCHELL

11.16

280061800
KEITH D MARTIN

10.25

521400110
RIVERSIDE TERRACE COURT LLP

0

280070300
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

14.55

525000041
GEMINI INC

4.28

521601270
GREGORY R WULF

6.25

525100131
CITY OF CANNON FALLS

6.29

280081200
GOODHUE COUNTY

9.53

521600920
CITY OF CANNON FALLS

0

280061900
RYAN P WIDMAN

4.83

521601190
JOHN F HEYDT

0

525600042
CANNON BLUFFS LLC

3.3

525600041
TOMMY D ELIAS

1.7

522360030
ANDREW D DUNCOMB

0

525000411
RAYMOND J RAPP

1

521400100
CITY OF CANNON FALLS

2.06

524800020
EDWARD J GERGEN

0

525000360
KEVIN W ROBINSON

1.56

521400021
MICHAEL A ROLFES

0

521004280
MARK A OTTE

1.13

521900210
CANNON BLUFFS I HOMEOWNR ASSOC

0

524800770
JUSTAN A DUDEN

0

525100160
GEMINI INC

0.5

521910020
RICHARD R QUALEY

0

524000360
RYAN OLSON

0

524000020
TERRY W BURVEE

0

521900060
RENEE M BRELAND

0

524000230
TODD A BELOY

0

Canno
nR

ive
r

0 710 1,420 2,130355
US Feet

MAP 02: VICINITY MAP

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

Josie Hayes
A3 Zoned District

Parcel 28.007.0100
Part of the NE 1/4 of Section 7

in TWP112 Range 17
 in Cannon Falls Township

Preliminary and Final Plat review of
proposed "Hayes Addition" Plat

PLANNING COMMISSION



DATA DISCLAIMER: Goodhue County assumes
NO liability for the accuracy or completeness of this map
OR responsibility  for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from its use
or misuse.  Goodhue County Copyright  2019.

2018 Aerial Imagery
Map Created August, 2019 by LUM

Legend
Bluff Impact Zones (% slope)

FEMA Flood Zones

Intermittent Streams

Protected Streams

Lakes & Other Water Bodies

Shoreland

Historic Districts

Parcels

Registered Feedlots

Dwellings

20

30

2% Annual Chance

A

AE

AO

XMunicipalities

¯

6

7 8

5

City of
Cannon Falls

A3

City

5
T
H

H
IG
H
W
A
Y
 2
0

WA
SH

ING
TO

N

9
T
H

7
T
H 1S

T

CO
UN
TY
 1
7

C

an
no

n
Riv

er

2

3

1

4

WASHIN
GTON

V
IK
IN
G EVERGREEM

280070100
JOSIE K HAYES

157.85

280062000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

80

525100133
GEMINI INC

18.2

521900150
CANNON BLUFFS LLC

30.16

280080400
GESME BROTHERS LLC

35

280080500
GESME BROTHERS LLC

20

525000041
GEMINI INC

4.28

522360050
SCOTT W PETERSON

0

524850020
JAMES H JOHNSON JR

0

525100130
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

27.5

280070300
ROBT E & MARY G MOLENAAR TRSTS

14.55

524000360
RYAN OLSON

0

280051000
GESME BROTHERS LLC

164.99

524850010
SCOTT J PEER

0

524000260
MITCH MEYERS

0

0 290 580 870145
US Feet

MAP 03: ELEVATIONS

Public Hearing
August 19, 2019

Josie Hayes
A3 Zoned District

Parcel 28.007.0100
Part of the NE 1/4 of Section 7

in TWP112 Range 17
 in Cannon Falls Township

Preliminary and Final Plat review of
proposed "Hayes Addition" Plat

PLANNING COMMISSION









 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
Report date: August 09, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Ordinance Updates (R1) 
Proposed amendments to Article 24 (R-1, Suburban Residential District) to modify language relating to 
dimensional requirements, permitted uses, platting requirements, and access standards. 
 
Attachments: 
Proposed Amendments 
Article 20 “Table of Uses” 
County Wide Zoning Map 
R1 Information 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
 
Summary: 
LUM staff are proposing the following amendments to Article 24 (R-1): 
 

Section 1:  
- Redundant language deleted to clarify R1 District’s intent 
 

Section 4:  
- Language relating to accessory structures and uses modified to clarify applicable standards. 

Ambiguous language regarding accessory uses deleted.  
- Accessory structure maximum sizing increased to be consistent for all R1 lot sizes. 
 

Section 5:  
- Heading amended.  
- Minimum parcel size amended to 1-acre of “Buildable Area” for all lots created after adoption of 

the proposed amendments. Lots existing prior to the adoption of the amendments would be 
allowed as building sites under existing minimum sizing language. 

- “Buildable Area” is removed from language regulating existing R1 parcel sizing to prevent 
existing R1 lots from becoming non-conforming upon adoption. Language relating to accessory 
structures removed from the section.  

- “Exceptions” to dimensional requirements removed from the section as they are already detailed 
in Article 11; section 21 (Performance Standards).  

- Inconsistent Feedlot setback language deleted. Setbacks to Feedlots are detailed in Article 13 and 
are the most current adopted standards. 

 

Section 6: 
- Redundant language referencing parking provisions removed. 
- Platting requirements for all future R1 subdivisions added. 
- Public Road Frontage/Easement access standard added to mirror A1, A2, and A3 District 

requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428/Zoning-Ordinances?bidId=


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

Article 20; Section 7 “TABLE OF USES”: 
- Language regarding “horses” within R1 districts amended to “livestock” and minimum lot size 

reduced to match proposed 1-acre lot size. 
 

Article 10 “DEFINITIONS”: 
- Livestock definition amended to include lamb, sheep, goats, and poultry 

 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record, and recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the amendments 
to Article 24 (R-1, Suburban Residential District), Article 20; section 7 (Table of Uses), and Article 10 
(Definitions). 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 24  Amended November 6, 2018 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

 

ARTICLE 24   R1, SUBURBAN RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

SECTION 1.    PURPOSE 
The R1, Suburban Residence District is intended to provide a district which will define and protect 
areas suitable for low to medium density residential development as the principal land use of the 
land and to allow related facilities desirable for a residential environment.  It is also intended that 
this district allow varying densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water 
and sewer facilities. 

SECTION 2.    PERMITTED USES 
All permitted uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Permitted uses allowed in the R1 
Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, “Table of Uses”. 

SECTION 3.    CONDITIONAL USES AND INTERIM USES 
All conditional uses and interim uses are subject to zoning and building permits.  Conditional and 
interim uses allowed in the R1 Zoning District shall be as shown in Article 20, Section 7, “Table of 
Uses.” 

SECTION 4.    ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 
Accessory structures and uses in the R1 district may be permitted when located on the same parcel 
as the Principal structure or use and shall comply with the following standards: Any following 
accessory use, building or structure customarily incidental to any permitted or conditionally 
permitted use shall be permitted, provided that such accessory use, building or structure shall be 
located on the same property. 

Subd. 1. Any home occupation. No accessory buildings or uses shall be permitted on a parcel 
prior to establishment of the principal building. 

Subd. 2. Detached accessory buildings shall be limited in size to 1,500 square feet in area for 
parcels 12,000 square feet to 1 acre and 2,100 square feet in area for parcels greater 
than 1 acre. 

Subd. 23. Any private garages, either separated or in connected groups, having common 
unpierced dividing walls between contiguous private garages. 

Subd. 34. Any temporary buildings for uses incidental to construction work, which buildings 
shall be removed upon completion or abandonment of such construction work. 

Subd. 4. Any other accessory building, structure or use customarily incidental to the permitted 
or conditionally permitted uses of this Article. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 24  Amended November 6, 2018 

SECTION 5.    DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS  LOT SIZE, 
SETBACK, YARD AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS 
Parcels in the Any lot in an R1, Suburban Residence District on which any permitted or 
conditionally permitted use is erected shall meet the following minimum standards: 

Subd. 1. Parcel Lot Size, Width and Depth. 

A. Parcels shall contain a minimum 1 acre of Buildable Area. 

B. Parcels rezoned or subdivided prior to August XX, 2019 shall contain a 
minimum 20,000 square feet of buildable area per dwelling unit when served by 
an individual SSTS or 6,000 square feet of buildable area per dwelling unit when 
served by a Community SSTS. 

C. All parcels shall have a minimum width of 100 feet at the building setback line 
and a minimum depth of 125 feet. 

A. Any lot on which a permitted residential use is erected shall contain twenty 
thousand (20,000) square feet of area per dwelling unit and shall have a 
minimum width of one hundred (100) feet at the building setback line and a 
minimum depth of one hundred twenty-five (125) feet when such use is served 
by private sewer and water systems. 

B. Any lot on which a permitted residential use is erected shall contain six thousand 
(6,000) square feet of buildable area per dwelling unit and shall have a 
minimum width of one hundred (100) feet at the building setback line and a 
minimum depth of one hundred twenty-five (125) feet when such use is served 
by a municipal sewage treatment system. 

Subd. 2. Yard Requirements.  Every permitted, conditionally permitted, or accessory building 
shall meet the following yard requirements: 

A. Front Yard. 

1. There shall be a minimum setback of forty (40) feet from the right-of-way 
line of any public road or highway; except that, this setback may be 
reduced to twenty-five (25) feet when such public road is a minor street 
serving only a residential subdivision. 

2. In the event any building is located on a lot at the intersection of two (2) or 
more roads or highways, such lot shall have a front yard abutting each such 
road or highway. 

B. Side Yard.  Every building shall have two (2) side yards.  Each side yard shall 
have a minimum width of eight (8) feet. 

C. Rear Yard.  Every building shall have a rear yard.  The rear yard shall have a 
minimum depth of eight (8) feet. 

Subd. 3. Bluff Impact Zone.  For any use or structure in the R1 District, the setback from the 
bluff impact zone shall be no less than thirty (30) feet. 

Subd. 4. Height Requirements.  Every permitted, conditionally permitted, or accessory 
building shall meet the following height requirements: 

A. All permitted or conditionally permitted principal Buildings shall not exceed 
thirty-five (35) feet in height. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 24  Amended November 6, 2018 

B. Freestanding accessory structures, including but not limited to, communication 
towers or antennas shall be limited to a height of 10 feet less than the distance to 
the nearest property line or shall be designed and engineered to collapse 
progressively within the distance between the tower and the property line. 
Accessory buildings shall comply with regulations set forth in Article 11, Section 
5 of this Ordinance. 

Subd. 5. No accessory building shall be constructed or developed on a lot prior to the 
construction of the principal building. 

Subd. 6. Parcel Lot Coverage.  No principal building together with its accessory buildings shall 
occupy more than twenty (20) percent of the total parcel lot area. 

Subd. 7. Substandard Lots of Record.  When contiguous and under identical ownership, must 
be combined to meet minimum standards of this Ordnance in order that any 
permitted or conditionally permitted use is allowed on such lot or lots. 

Subd. 8. Exceptions.  Certain uses are exempted from meeting the lot's size, yard and height 
requirements.  These exceptions are listed in Article 11.  Note: Art. 11 Section 21 

Subd. 9. Distance from Confined Feedlots.  No residential use including residential 
subdivisions shall be sited within one-quarter (1/4) mile of an existing confined 
feeding operation of less than three hundred (300) animal units or within one-half 
(½) mile of an existing confined feeding operation of more than three hundred (300) 
animal units. 

SECTION 6.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Additional requirements for parking regulations in the R-1, Suburban Residence 

District are set forth in Article 11 of this Ordinance.

Subd. 1. Plat Required. Any subdivision of an R1 zoned parcel that could result in the creation 
of one or more additional dwelling sites shall be platted according to procedures set 
forth in the Goodhue County Subdivision Controls Ordinance.  

Subd. 2. Public Road Frontage or Road Access Easements Standards: 

A. Each Parcel shall include a minimum 33 feet of frontage on a public road right-of-
way line extending to the building line.  As an alternative, a single parcel that does 
not front on a public road may be permitted upon the recording (with the 
Goodhue County Recorder) of a driveway access easement that is a minimum of 33 
feet in width and has been determined to be acceptable by the Goodhue County 
Land Use Management Department.  

B. Two parcels that do not front on a public road may be permitted upon the 
recording (with the Goodhue County Recorder) of a shared driveway access 
easement that is a minimum of 66 feet in width and has been determined to be 
acceptable by the Goodhue County Land Use Management. 

C. Access for 3 or more parcels shall meet the standards for public roads in the 
Goodhue County Subdivision Ordinance. 

 

 

 



Amended September 16, 2014 

24-4 

ARTICLE 10 WORD USAGE AND DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 2.    DEFINITIONS 
When used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings herein assigned to them. 
Words used in this ordinance, but not defined therein, shall carry the meanings as defined in 
Webster's Unabridged Third International Dictionary or its successor volumes. 
 

BUILDABLE AREA.  The contiguous area of a parcel that is sufficient in area to 
accommodate the construction of water supply systems, sewage treatment systems, 
buildings, and driveways while maintaining adequate setbacks. Floodway, areas below 
Ordinary High Water Level, and Public or Private Rights-of-Way shall not be included 
in calculating the Buildable Area of a parcel.  

 

LIVESTOCK.  Any beef or dairy cattle, swine, sheep, horses and ponies. 
“Livestock” includes all cattle, swine, equine, camelids, poultry, and 
domestic fowl raised for domestic, agricultural, or commercial uses 
(including, but not limited to, beef and dairy cattle, horses, donkeys, 
goats, sheep, pigs, llamas, alpacas, chickens, turkey, ostriches, and 
waterfowl).  

 



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1

P P P P
NP NP NP P
P P P P

C/I  C/I C/I NP
NP NP NP  C/I

P P NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP
P P P NP
P C/I NP NP

C/I C/I NP NP

C/I C/I C/I NP

P P P NP
P P P NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
P P P NP
P P P NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I C/I NP

C/I

P P P P
P P P I
I I I NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I NP NP

P P NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP

a. Accessory buildings > 500ft 2  shall be ≥ 100ft from any lot line and ≥ 200ft from the nearest dwelling (Art.23 § 3 subd. 1)

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

Non-Agricutlural Uses Associated W/Agritourism  (Art. 11 § 30)
Up to 3 Animal Units on a minimum 1-acre parcel  3 horses on a minimum 5 acre lot

Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard (Art.11 § 10)
Mining, Quarrying, Excavating/Filling  (Art.14)

Industrial

Contractors Yard (Art.11 § 33)
Veterinary Clinic

Commercial 

Two, Three, Or Four Family Dwellings

b. Any mining, excavating, or filling of land for these uses shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 10)
c. Accessory structures and uses customarily incidental to this use shall be by conditional use (Art.23 § 3 subd. 11)

Mobile Home Park ( Art. 16 )
Residential Accessory Buildings ≥ 7,200ft2 (Art. 11 § 6)
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) (Art. 11 § 31)

New Feedlot (Art.13)

Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand < 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Farm Market/On-farm market/Roadside Stand > 2400ft2 (Art. 11 § 29)
Plant Nurseries & Sales
Farm Wineries < 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)
Farm Wineries > 10,000ft2 (Art. 11 § 27)

Home Businesses - Tier 3 (Art.11 § 12)
Commercial Kennel/Raising of fur-bearing animals (Art.11 § 26)
Commercial/Industrial Uses primarily intended to serve Ag. Community
Boarding or Rooming Houses as an accessory use
Bed and Breakfast Inn (Art.11 § 13)

Agricultural 

Residential 

Agricultural Operations (including tree farms) (Art.11 § 24)

Feedlot expansion up to ≤ 100 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 300 Animal Units (Art.13)
Feedlot expansion to ≥ 500 Animal Units (Art.13)
Animal waste storage structure ≥ 500,000 gallons (lagoon system, earthen basin, or associated 
structure [pit]) (Art.13)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Table of Uses

Home Businesses - Tier 1 (Art.11 § 12)
Home Businesses - Tier 2 (Art.11 § 12)

Use

Single-Family Dwelling

Temporary/Seasonal Off-Site Roadside Produce Stands
Education Farm Retreat (Art. 11 § 14)

New Feedlot outside of Farmyard (Art.13)

Feedlots (Art.13)



A-1 A-2 A-3 R-1

C/I C/I C/I NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
NP NP NP C/I
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP
NP C/I C/I NP

C/I C/I C/Iabc NP

NP C/I NP NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP

NP C/I C/I NP

C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc C/I
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
C/I C/I C/Ibc NP
NP NP C/Ibc NP

NP NP C/Ibc NP

P P P P
P P C/I NP

C/I C/I NP NP
P P C/I NP

C/I C/I C/I NP
P P P P
P P P P

C/I C/I NP NP
C/I NP NP NP
C/I NP NP NP
C/I C/I NP NP
C/I C/I C/I NP

KEY: P = PERMITTED     NP = NOT PERMITTED     C = CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT     I = INTERIM USE PERMIT     

WECS (Non-Commercial Micro) (Art. 18)

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Storage Structure (size & location to be approved by the Planning 
Advisory Commission)

Public Stable

Non-agricultural Lagoons (In accordance w/ MPCA regulations)
Migratory Labor Camp
Commercial Radio Towers/TV Towers/Transmitters

Institutional
Community Building

Cemetery
Memorial Garden
Public School

SES (Utility Scale)  (Art. 19)
SES (Commercial Scale)  (Art. 19)

GOODHUE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Table of Uses

Use

Private School
Nursery School

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Facilities (including, but not limited to, Golf Courses/Driving Ranges, 
Tennis Courts, Skiing, Swimming Pools, Park Facilities)

Park/Recreational Area (operated by a governmental agency)
Park/Recreational Area
Hunting Club/Shooting Preserve
Campground &/or RV Site (Art.16 § 7)
Park Manager's Residence (1 per campground/RV park w/ ≥ 30 campsites)

Recreational 

Miscellaneous

SES (Residential Scale) (Art. 19)
Aircraft Landing Fields & Facilities 
Sanitary Landfills/Sewage Disposal Works

Commercial Outdoor Recreation Health Facilities

Retreat Centers (Art.11 § 25)

Church

WECS (Meteorological Tower) (Art. 18)

Funeral Home
Hospital, Sanitarium, Philanthropic/Eleemosynary Institutions (except correctional institutions, animal 
hospitals)

WECS (Non-Commercial)  (Art. 18)
WECS (Commercial) (Art. 18)



R1 Statistics 

Parcel Size # of Lots Acres % of Total R1 Lots 

≤ 1 Acre 908 462 55% 

≥ 1 Acre 750 2,397 45% 

≥ 2 Acres 345 1,853 20% 

≥ 3 Acres 238 1,595 14% 

≥ 4 Acres 141 1,650 8% 

≥ 5 Acres 97 1,018 6% 

TOTALS 1658 2,859 100% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Typical Square Footages for Single Family Lots in R1 

Single Family Dwelling ≈ 4,000 square feet 

Garage  ≈ 500 square feet 

Drainfield 1 (initial-mound system) ≈ 4,000 square feet 

Drainfield 2 (replacement-mound system) ≈ 4,000 square feet  

TOTAL: ≈ 10,000 square feet OR 1/4 Acre 

**Please note the numbers above are “cumulative” (E.G. lots ≥ 4 acres includes all lot sizes from 4 acres up to 
100+ acres) 



 

 

TOWNSHIPS WITH R1 ZONES 
Cannon Falls Township 
Featherstone Township 

Florence Township 

Hay Creek Township 

Leon Township 

Minneola Township 

Pine Island Township 

Stanton Township 

Vasa Township 

Wacouta Township 

Warsaw Township 

Welch Township 

Zumbrota Township 

=13 Townships 

 

TOWNSHIPS WITHOUT R1 ZONES 
Belle Creek Township 
Belvidere Township 
Cherry Grove Township 
Goodhue Township 
Holden Township 
Kenyon Township 
Roscoe Township 
Wanamingo Township 
=8 Townships 



DATA DISCLAIMER:
Goodhue County assumes NO liability for the
accuracy or completeness of this map OR

responsibility for any associated direct, indirect,
or consequential damages that may result from

its use or misuse. Goodhue County Copyright 2019

Goodhue County

Prepared by Goodhue County, MN
Land Use Management Office, 8/7/2019

Parcel with Identification Number

Section

Municipal Boundary

Road Centerlines

Stream

Dwelling"

Legend

PI (Prairie Island Indian Community)

Split Zone

R1

MXH

I

City

CR

B2

A3

A2

A1

Zoning



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 4 

 

Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax:  651.267.4875 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.267.4875 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 
 County Surveyor / Recorder 

 

To:  County Board 

From:  Land Use Management 

Meeting Date:   August 19, 2019 

Report Date:  August 9, 2019 

 
PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM:  
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions) and Article 11; section 26 (Kennel 
Performance Standards) to modify language defining the age of adult pets from 4 months to 28 
weeks for kennel operations. 

Attachments: 
Minnesota Statutes 347.57 (Definitions) 

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428 

 
Background: 
Land Use Management Staff have been discussing with a Kennel Operator in the County a 
potential Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment to adjust the age dogs are considered to be “adult” 
for regulatory purposes.  This particular Kennel Operator breeds dogs to train as therapy dogs.  
She made LUM Staff aware that the Board of Animal Health uses 28 weeks to distinguish 
between an adult dog and a puppy (see Minnesota Statutes 347.57).  Currently the County’s 
standard for this threshold is 4 months as noted in the definition for Kennel found in Article 10, 
Section 2; and in Article 11, Section 26, Subd. 1, paragraph B, as noted below. 
 
In researching this issue staff contacted the Minnesota Board of Animal Control to discuss the 
State Standard.  A staff person with the Board of Animal Control explained that the 28 week 
standard to distinguish between a “puppy” and an adult dog was established when the current 
statutory language was drafted.  A specific rationale was not offered for why the “28 week” 
standard was chosen. 
 
Normally, the County prefers to be consistent with State Standards in areas where County and 
State Regulations may overlap.  The Board of Animal Control licenses dog breeding facilities and 
enforces the 28 week standard. The County regulates kennels as a conditional or interim land 
use with performance standards included in Article 11, Section 26 of the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Since, a change in standard for recognizing mature/adult animals would impact other kennels, 
LUM Staff has proceeded to initiate a zoning text amendment of the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance to provide the Planning Advisory Commission the opportunity to consider the 
merits of amending the age standard to distinguish between “adult” and “juvenile” animals. 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 
Included below are Article 10, Section 2 (Kennel Definition) and the complete Article 11, Section 
26 (Kennels).  Language to be removed is noted with the strike through symbol (sssss) and 
language to be added is noted with the use of bold italic text (bbbb). 

ARTICLE 10.  WORD USAGE AND DEFINITIONS 
SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS 

KENNEL. Animal - Any place where four (4) or more of any type of domestic or exotic pets over 
four (4) months 28 weeks of age are owned, boarded, bred, or offered for sale. 

 
ARTICLE 11.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
SECTION 26. KENNELS  
 
Subd. 1. Application and standards. In addition to the other requirements, the application for 
conditional use permit shall be accompanied by 25 copies of the plans, which indicate or address the 
following:  
 

A. The stated purpose for the kennel; 
  

B. The species and maximum number of animals that will be at the site (include all animals 
over the age of four months 28 weeks on the property);  

 
C. All animals at the property must have current vaccinations. Records need to be kept on-site, 

or at an identified veterinarian office, and produced immediately upon request;  
 
D. Location and size of all existing and proposed physical improvements such as buildings, 

landscaping, parking areas, etc.; 
 
E. Location of existing or proposed indoor/outdoor runs; 
 
F. Plans for sanitary sewage disposal, water systems (natural or manmade), and utilities 

servicing the site; 
G. Show the existing and proposed surface drainage; 
H. Existing or proposed location for overhead lighting; 
I. Location and width of all streets abutting the site; 
J. The kennel facility must have proper heating, cooling, ventilation and lighting:  

1. Confinement areas must be maintained at a temperature suitable for the animal 
involved. 

2. An indoor confinement area must be ventilated. Drafts, odors, and moisture 
condensation must be minimized. Auxiliary ventilation, such as exhaust fans, vents, and 
air conditioning, must be used when the ambient temperature rises to a level that may 
endanger the health of the animal. 

3. An indoor confinement area must have at least eight hours of illumination sufficient to 
permit routine inspection and cleaning.  
 

K. The kennel construction material must be impervious to water and odor and easily 
cleanable;  

L. A manure management plan describing manure pick up and disposal; 
M. All structures shall require a building permit; 
N. Existing buildings used as any part of the kennel (in which the public may have access) 

must pass building code inspections prior to it being utilized by the kennel; 
O. Any licenses or permits required by Environmental Health including but not limited to: 

water supply and septic systems.  



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Subd. 2. The Planning Advisory Commission shall take into consideration the following information 
and performance standards in which to base their recommendation to the County Board for kennel 
conditional use permit applications:  

A. The measures taken to minimize noise from the proposed kennel; 
 

B. The impact on local traffic; 
 
C. Permanent water lines and septic systems may be required in the kennel building for 

drinking water, cleaning the kennels, and disposing of the wastewater in an approved 
manner; and 

 
D. Allow periodic inspections of the facility in coordination with the Land Use Management 

department. 

 

Land Use Management Staff Recommendation: 

Land Use Management staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission adopt the staff report 
into the record, and recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the amendments: 

• ARTICLE 10.  WORD USAGE AND DEFINITIONS 
SECTION 2.  DEFINITIONS 

KENNEL. Animal - Any place where four (4) or more of any type of domestic or exotic 
pets over four (4) months 28 weeks of age are owned, boarded, bred, or offered for 
sale. 
 

• ARTICLE 11.  PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
SECTION 26. KENNELS  

 
Subd. 1. Application and standards. In addition to the other requirements, the application for 
conditional use permit shall be accompanied by 25 copies of the plans, which indicate or 
address the following:  
B. The species and maximum number of animals that will be at the site (include all animals 

over the age of four months 28 weeks on the property).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



347.57 DEFINITIONS.

Subdivision 1. Terms. The definitions in this section apply to sections 347.57 to 347.64.

Subd. 2. Animal. "Animal" means a dog or a cat.

Subd. 3. Board. "Board" means the Board of Animal Health.

Subd. 4. Cat. "Cat" means a mammal that is wholly or in part of the species Felis domesticus. An adult
cat is a cat 28 weeks of age or older. A kitten is a cat under 28 weeks of age.

Subd. 5. Commercial breeder. "Commercial breeder" means a person who possesses or has an ownership
interest in animals and is engaged in the business of breeding animals for sale or for exchange in return for
consideration, and who possesses ten or more adult intact animals and whose animals produce more than
five total litters of puppies or kittens per year.

Subd. 6. Confinement area. "Confinement area" means a structure used or designed for use to restrict
an animal to a limited amount of space, such as a room, pen, cage, kennel, compartment, crate, or hutch.

Subd. 7. Dog. "Dog" means a mammal that is wholly or in part of the species Canis familiaris. An adult
dog is a dog 28 weeks of age or older. A puppy is a dog under 28 weeks of age.

Subd. 8. Facility. "Facility" means the place used by a commercial breeder for breeding animals, and
includes all buildings, property, confinement areas, and vehicles.

Subd. 9. Local animal control authority. "Local animal control authority" means an agency of the
state, county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state that is responsible for animal control
operations in its jurisdiction.

Subd. 10. Person. "Person" means a natural person, firm, partnership, corporation, or association,
however organized.

Subd. 11. Possess. "Possess" means to have custody of or have control over.

Subd. 12. Veterinarian. "Veterinarian" means a veterinarian in good standing and licensed in the state
of Minnesota.

History: 2014 c 312 art 13 s 32

Copyright © 2018 by the Revisor of Statutes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.

347.57MINNESOTA STATUTES 20181


	FS11_CUP Amendment Request_190731.pdf
	ATTACHMENT A.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	ARTICLE-24_Amendments.pdf
	SECTION 1.    PURPOSE
	SECTION 2.    PERMITTED USES
	SECTION 3.    CONDITIONAL USES AND INTERIM USES
	SECTION 4.    ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES
	SECTION 5.    DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS  LOT SIZE, SETBACK, YARD AND HEIGHT REQUIREMENTS
	SECTION 6.    GENERAL REGULATIONS
	SECTION 2.    DEFINITIONS

	TableOfUses_Amended.pdf
	Sheet1

	Zoning_Text_Amendment_Kennel Regulation_Staff_Report
	MN_Statutes_347.57
	Sec. 347.57
	Subd. 1
	Subd. 2
	Subd. 3
	Subd. 4
	Subd. 5
	Subd. 6
	Subd. 7
	Subd. 8
	Subd. 9
	Subd. 10
	Subd. 11
	Subd. 12





